

KENYA GOLF UNION

CONSTITUTION

Revised and reprinted 2014

PREAMBLE

The Kenya Golf Union has a long history that was articulated in the preface of its 2009 constitution. The promulgation of a new constitution of Kenya in August 2010 and the coming into effect of the Sports Act No. 25 of 2013 has made it necessary to revise the Constitution of the Union to align it with prevailing regulatory framework. The Sports Act 2013 has not only created new institutions that the Union has to work with but also necessitated the establishment of a Golf Federation as the national organization for the sport of Golf in Kenya. The Kenya Golf Union will operate under the Kenya Golf Federation to discharge its mandate as outlined in the revised edition of the KGU Constitution 2014. The Union envisions that the new institutional realignment will foster public and private partnership in strengthening Golf in Kenya as an Olympic Sport.

THE KENYA GOLF UNION BY L.R. FISHER [REVISED BY S.R. NDEGWA]

This is, in a very condensed form, the history of the Kenya Golf Union and its objects. A separate booklet would be necessary to do justice to a full history since its foundation, but it is hoped that readers will find the facts now related of interest.

The first attempt to form a Golf Union in East Africa, similar to Golf Unions in the United Kingdom and other parts of the Commonwealth, took place at a meeting convened by the late Mr. A. C. Tannahill and held at Nairobi Golf Club [now Royal Nairobi Golf Club] on 7th July, 1923. There were 13 representatives present from Golf Clubs in Kenya, Tanganyika and Uganda. The late Major J. D. Leonard took the Chair and the late Mr. A. C. Tannahill acted as Honorary Secretary. A formation committee was appointed and included in addition to the two names mentioned, the late W. T. Shapley and the late F. S. Dunn. It was finally decided to name the Union "The Golf Union of East Africa" and it is from this original venture that the present Kenya Golf Union owes its origin.

There are no records between 1924 and 1928, but by the latter year it is obvious that the Golf Union of East Africa had ceased to function on an East African basis and at a meeting of the Golf Captains who had taken part in the Nairobi Golf Club Easter Tournament, and held on 29th December 1928, the Kenya Golf Union was inaugurated. The first member clubs were Eldoret, Gilgil, Kiambu, Kitale, Nairobi and Muthaiga, a total of six. The membership of the Union today consists of 38 clubs and two societies.

A question often asked by golfers who are perhaps comparatively new recruits to the game is "What is the Kenya Golf Union and what does it do?" The answer to that question is very brief, the Kenya Golf Union is the banding together of golf clubs in Kenya in a Union, in order to control their affairs and to promote the interests of the game of golf. In other words, the Union is in effect the Golf Clubs.

The original objects of the Union as stated in the first constitution were:-

- a. To promote the interest of golf in the Colony and Protectorate of Kenya;
- b. To control the Amateur Golf Championship of Kenya
- c. To give approval and recognition to suitable Golfing Societies originating in the Colony

The above objects have since been enlarged and the current constitution is reprinted in this booklet.

Initially, an Annual General Meeting of the Kenya Golf Union was held each year at Easter, usually in the Club House of Royal Nairobi Golf Club. At this meeting, a member of every club affiliated to the Union would be present and would have powers of voting. Currently, Muthaiga Golf Club is the home of the Kenya Golf Union and the Constitution has been amended such that the Annual General Meeting is held during the month of May. Moreover, clubs have been categorised to provide equity in terms of number of members in each club.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The above article on the history of Kenya Golf Union is an extract from "The Game of Golf in East Africa" by Dickie Hooper.

THE KENYA GOLF UNION

CONSTITUTION

1. NAME

The name of the Union shall be 'THE KENYA GOLF UNION hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

2. OBJECTS

The Union which declares as its foundation the observance of the Rules of Golf and Amateur Status as laid down by the R&A Rules Limited, shall have as its prime objects:-

- 2.1. To advance, promote and safeguard the interests of the game of golf in Kenya under the Kenya Golf Federation.
- 2.2. To uphold and maintain the Rules of Golf and the Rules, Definitions and Interpretations of R&A Rules Limited, whose jurisdiction as the Ruling Authority in Golf is recognised by the Union.
- 2.3. To establish, develop, maintain and administer Kenya National Handicap System and Standard Scratch Scores which all affiliated clubs shall use and supervise the administration of the Kenya National Handicap System and control the observance of the fundamental principles and regulations of the system by all affiliated clubs.
- 2.4. To co-operate with the Kenya Golf Federation, Sports Kenya, the Sports Academy, the Kenya Ladies Golf Union, and with all such other national or international Unions, associations, societies or other bodies as may represent golf players or affect golf in Kenya or elsewhere.
- 2.5. To organise, control and manage, by way of delegation or otherwise, the Kenya Open Golf Championships, and to promote, sponsor, control and administer such other competitions, Tournaments and matches, and to such extent, as the Union shall determine.
- 2.6. To maintain and co-ordinate the dates of, and publish an annual calendar of Open and Amateur championships of its affiliated clubs and to arrange, in conjunction with the Kenya Golf Federation, other Unions and Associations, championships and specific matches of national and international character.
- **2.7.** To incorporate such companies and to form or participate in the formation of such other associations or organisations as are considered likely, directly or indirectly, to further the objects of the Union and the interests of its members.
- **2.8.** Generally to do all such lawful acts and things as may be incidental or conducive to any of the above objects.

3. MEMBERSHIP

The membership of the Union shall consist of Member Clubs and Individual Members.

- 3.1. Member clubs shall be such recognized Clubs in Kenya;
 - 3.1.1. which are private members clubs at which golf is regularly played on a course registered under the name of or owned by the club;
 - 3.1.2. which have been constituted for the purposes of supervising golf and applying the Union Handicapping system and which regularly play golf at private, public or proprietary golf courses;

Each club shall pay the Union the annual affiliation fee for that club which is currently in force

- 3.2. Individual Members shall be restricted to the Past Chairmen or Presidents of the Union, whose membership shall remain in force without payment for so long as they shall continue to reside in Kenya.
- 3.3. Any Club, which is a candidate for membership, shall apply in writing to the Honorary Secretary, together with a copy of its Rules or Constitution and a Certified Return of the total number of male amateur golfing full members of the Club as at the date of application. Any such application may be approved by the Executive Committee, whereupon the Club shall be admitted to membership immediately upon payment of the appropriate Affiliation fee for the current year.
- **3.4.** In the event the application is not approved by the Executive Committee, it shall be referred to the next Annual General Meeting of the Governing Council, whose decision as to any terms to be imposed as a condition of membership shall be final.

4. THE GOVERNING COUNCIL OF THE UNION

- 4.1. The Union shall have a Governing Council which shall have supreme authority over the affairs of the Union, and which shall consist of:-
 - 4.1.1. The office-bearers of the Union, being Chairman, the Vice-Chairman, the Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer,
 - 4.1.2. The members of the Executive Committee;
 - 4.1.3. The nominated representatives of Member Clubs, and each of whom shall, subject to Article 4.4, be entitled to one vote at any meeting at which he is present in person
 - 4.1.4. Individual members as defined by Article 3.2.
- 4.2. Member Clubs may nominate one representative to exercise at any General Meeting each vote to which the club is entitled, as follows:

4.2.1. Clubs falling within Category A of the Affiliation fee: 1 Vote4.2.2. Clubs falling within Category B: 2 Votes4.2.3. Clubs falling within Category C: 3 Votes4.2.4. Clubs falling within Category D: 4 Votes4.2.5. Clubs falling within Category E: 5 Votes

- **4.3.** Each such representative shall be a male amateur golfing full member of the Member Club, and shall be nominated by the Member Club in writing to the Honorary Secretary of the Union prior to the commencement of the meeting.
- **4.4.** The representatives of any Member Club which is under suspension, or is in arrears of the affiliation fees, as at the date of any meeting shall not be entitled to vote at that meeting.

5. AFFILIATION FEES

- 5.1. The Annual Affiliation fee payable to the Union by each Member Club Shall be calculated by reference to the number of male amateur golfing full members handicapped at that Club.
- 5.2. The rates, conditions and date of due payment of such Affiliation fees shall be published as Bye-laws made under Article 18 from time to time.
- **5.3.** The Executive Committee shall have power in any special case of need to waive in part or in whole or to amend the terms of payment of the Affiliation fee, for reasons which shall be recorded.

6. SUSPENSION OF MEMBERSHIP

- 6.1. Any member club which defaults in payment of any Affiliation fee or other monies due to the Union for two months after the issue of a final notice to that effect by the Honorary Treasurer Shall ipso facto be suspended from membership until all arrears have been paid in full.
- 6.2. Any Member Club which:
 - 6.2.1. wilfully refuses or neglects to comply with a directive from the Union or wilfully acts in contravention of this Constitution, or
 - 6.2.2. acts in a manner which is detrimental to the interests of the game of golf in Kenya, or which is likely to bring the Union or its members into disrepute or
 - 6.2.3. becomes bankrupt or is otherwise unable to pay its debts,
 - shall after being afforded due opportunity to be heard be liable to be suspended from membership for such period and subject to such conditions as the Executive Committee may in its discretion decide.
- 6.3. During the period of any such suspension, the defaulting Club shall be entitled to none of the rights or privileges of membership of the Union, and members of the defaulting Club shall be disqualified from entering any Open event, although this prohibition shall not disqualify any golfer from entering by virtue of his membership of a Club other than the defaulting Club. Club Members' handicaps shall not be affected by such suspension.

6.4. Any defaulting Club aggrieved by its suspension under this Article may refer the matter to an Extraordinary General meeting of the Governing Council, which shall be summoned for that Purpose by the Honorary Secretary following the procedure set out under Article 9.3. The Decision of the Meeting shall be final.

7. UNION FUNDS AND BORROWING POWERS

- 7.1. The funds of the Union shall be used only in furtherance of the objects of the Union.
- 7.2. The Union shall have power to borrow, raise and give security for monies required for the furtherance of its objects.
- 7.3. All monies paid to the Union shall be received by the Honorary Treasurer and banked forthwith by him in such bank accounts in the name of the Union as shall be approved by the Executive Committee.
- 7.4. The Executive Committee shall have power to deposit or otherwise invest from time to time any part of the Union's funds, and shall have power to secure any loans or temporary advances made to the Union for the furtherance of its objects.
- **7.5.** No funds or other property of the Union shall be distributed among the members of the Union, but this prohibition shall not prevent payments being made out of Union funds to a Member Club in furtherance of the objects of the Union or in return for services rendered to the Union, or the payment of reasonable and proper remuneration to any employee or servant of the Union.
- 7.6. The Union shall pay annual affiliation fees to the Kenya Golf Federation as mutually determined by KGU and KGF.

8. ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

- 8.1. The financial year of the Union shall be from 1st January to 31st December.
- 8.2. The Honorary Treasurer shall for each financial year prepare a Statement of Accounts covering all aspects of the Union's financial affairs, and shall circulate copies of the same together with the notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Governing Council.
- 8.3. An Auditor shall be appointed annually by the Executive Committee to examine and certify the Statement of Accounts prior to such circulation.
- **8.4.** No office-bearer or member of the Executive Committee shall be appointed as Auditor.

9. GENERAL MEETINGS OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

- 9.1. Any general Meeting of the Governing Council other than the Annual General Meeting shall be called an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- 9.2. Not less than twenty-one days' notice specifying the date, time and place of any General Meeting, and in the case of special business the nature of business, shall be given by the Honorary Secretary by post to the Secretary of each Member club, to each individual Member and to each office-bearer or member of the Executive Committee, but the non-receipt of such notice by any person shall not invalidate the proceedings at the meeting.
- 9.3. The Executive Committee may whenever it thinks fit, and shall forthwith upon receipt of a requisition in writing by not less than four Member Clubs, instruct the Honorary Secretary to convene and give due notice of an Extraordinary General Meeting. Every such requisition and notice shall specify the nature of the special business for which the meeting is required.
- 9.4. The Chairman of the Union or in his absence the Vice-Chairman, shall be the Chairman of all General Meetings, but in the absence of both of them the members present shall elect one of their number to be Chairman of that meeting.
- 9.5. The quorum at all General Meetings shall be fifteen, but if within half an hour of the time appointed for a meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting shall stand adjourned for one week at the same time and place. At the adjourned meeting, those members present shall constitute a quorum.
- 9.6. At all General meetings every question or resolution shall, save where otherwise provided, be decided by a show of hands, unless before or immediately after the declaration of the result a poll is demanded by not less than five persons present and entitled to vote, or is directed by the Chairman.

9.7. Save where otherwise provided, a majority of votes shall carry any resolution. In the event of a stalemate there shall be a second count, and if upon such second count there shall again be a stalemate the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

10. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL

- 10.1. The Annual General Meeting of the Governing Council shall be held during the month of May in each year, on such date and at such time and place as the Executive Committee shall determine.
- 10.2. Not later than 1st March each year, the Honorary secretary shall circulate to each Member Club an invitation to submit, not later than 31st March and in the manner prescribed:
 - 10.2.1. The names of not more than one candidate for each of the ten elective posts described in Article 12.2 and
 - 10.2.2. Notice of any special business it may wish to propose at the meeting.

Every candidate must be a male amateur golfing full member of a Member Club of the Union, but need not be a member of the Member Club proposing him.

- 10.3. The Executive Committee may, and in the case of any post for which no proposals from Member Clubs have been received by 31st March it shall, itself propose one or more candidates for any elective post, provided in each case that the candidate has consented to stand for election. Any current holder of any post shall be eligible for proposal by the Executive Committee under this Article.
- 10.4. The Executive Committee shall likewise itself give notice of any special business it may wish to propose at the meeting.
- 10.5. The Honorary Secretary shall, at least twenty-one days beforehand circulate Notice of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article 10.2. The Notice shall include:
 - 10.5.1. The names of all candidates for each post proposed under Articles 11.2.or 11.3, and
 - **10.5.2.** The nature of any special business notified under Articles 11.2.2 or 11.4

11. PROCEEDINGS AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

- 11.1. The business of the Annual General Meeting shall be:
 - 11.1.1. To approve the minutes of the preceding Annual General Meeting, and the minutes of any other General Meeting that have not previously been approved.
 - 11.1.2. To receive the Chairman's Report.
 - **11.1.3.** To receive the Honorary Treasurer's report and Statement of Accounts, and to consider and decide on any action to be taken on the financial affairs of the Union.
 - 11.1.4. To elect such office-bearers and members of the Executive Committee of the Union as are described under Article 12.2 and subject to Article 11.2.
 - 11.1.5. To consider and decide upon any special business of which notice has been circulated under Article 10.5.
 - 11.1.6. To consider and further matters which the Chairman may deem sufficiently urgent.
- 11.2. The Chairman of the Union, the Vice-Chairman, the Honorary Secretary, the Honorary Treasurer and six members to serve on the Executive Committee shall each be elected directly by members in regular elections and shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting, when they shall retire and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
- 11.3. The election described in Article 11.1.4 shall be held as follows:
 - 11.3.1. Individual elections shall be held for the posts of Chairman, Vice Chairman, Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer, but the election of the six members to serve on the Executive Committee shall be a consolidated election.
 - 11.3.2. In the event that in any election there are more candidates than vacancies, an alphabetical list of the names of all eligible candidates shall be prepared and displayed. Each person present and entitled to vote may then complete a balloting paper to indicate his vote, but in case of the consolidated election a balloting paper containing more than six votes shall be invalid.

- 11.3.3. The result of any election shall be declared by two scrutinizers appointed by the Chairman, and shall thereupon be final.
- **11.4.** An eligible candidate shall mean any person duly proposed under Article 11.2, provided that if he has recorded his consent to stand for election the candidate need not be present in person.
- 11.5. The elections contemplated herein above must meet the standards set under Article 81 of the Constitution of Kenya 2010.

12. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- 12.1. The Union shall have an Executive Committee which shall, subject to the supreme authority of the Governing Council, exercise all such powers and do all such things as may be exercised or done by the Union, save such as are by this Constitution required to be exercised by the Governing Council in General Meeting.
- 12.2. The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairman of the Union, the immediate past Chairman, the Vice-Chairman, the Honorary Secretary, the Honorary Treasurer and six elected Members.
- 12.3. The Executive Committee may co-opt any person to fill any vacancy that may occur between Annual General Meetings, and may at any time co-opt (bearing in mind the need for countrywide Representation) up to four additional members to serve on the Executive Committee until the next Annual General Meeting.
- 12.4. The Honorary Secretary shall convene regular meetings of the Executive Committee, and shall convene such additional meetings as the Chairman or any two members may request. The Chairman shall cause minutes to be made of all meetings.
- 12.5. The quorum at all meetings of the executive Committee shall be six, and the Chairmanship and voting procedures shall follow the procedures set our under Articles 10.4 and 10.7.
- 12.6. Without prejudice to the general powers conferred on it by Article 13.1, the Executive Committee shall have power:
 - 12.6.1. To employ and to remunerate on behalf of the Union, on such terms as it shall think fit, such servants (including Executive Officers, assistants or professionals in any field) as it may deem necessary for the efficient running of the Union and for the furtherance of the objects of the Union.
 - 12.6.2. To take any disciplinary action and to impose any penalty, including disqualification from entering any Open event, upon any golfer who:
 - 12.6.2.1 Willfully refuses or neglects to comply with a directive from the Union or wilfully acts in contravention of this Constitution, or
 - **12.6.2.2** Acts in a manner which is detrimental to the interests of the game of golf in Kenya, or which is likely to bring the Union or its members into disrepute or
 - 12.6.2.3 becomes bankrupt or is otherwise unable to pay his debts.
 - **12.6.3.** To form such sub-committees and to delegate thereto such of its powers and responsibilities as it shall in its absolute discretion think fit. Any sub-committee may co-opt any number of additional members.
 - **12.6.4.** To postpone the Annual General Meeting under exceptional circumstances as may be determined by the Governing Council for a period not exceeding three months by a resolution supported by two-thirds of the Executive committee members.

13. DISQUALIFICATION

- 13.1. The office of any member of the Executive Committee of the Union shall be vacated if that member:
 - 13.1.1. is adjudged guilty of the conduct described under Article 12.6.2
 - 13.1.2. is prevented by illness or incapacity from carrying out his duties for a consecutive period of four months, or
 - 13.1.3. resigns his office by notice in writing to the Executive Committee
 - 13.1.4. fails during his year of office to attend on three consecutive occasions the scheduled meetings of the Executive Committee, unless prior leave of absence has been granted by the Chairman.

14. OPEN EVENTS

- 14.1. The Executive Committee shall, in consultation with the Kenya Golf Federation, organise, control and manage the dates, locations, conditions and all other aspects of the Kenya Open Golf Championship and events related thereto, the Kenya Amateur Match play Championship and the Kenya Amateur Open Championship, save that it may in its discretion delegate all or any of its powers as it sees fit. The Executive Committee may also manage such other tournaments as it may determine.
- 14.2. All other Open events, being events open within handicap limits to all amateur golfing members of all Member Clubs, shall be organised and controlled by the Promoting Club, save that:
 - 14.2.1 the dates and location of any Open Event shall be subject to the approval of the Executive Committee and the inclusion of the same in the K.G.U. Calendar of Open Events.
 - 14.2.2 the Executive Committee may direct the amendment of any condition governing any event.
- **14.3.** The Union Calendar of Open and Amateur Events shall be prepared and circulated by the Executive Committee on or before 31st October in each year.

15. COMMUNICATIONS FROM MEMBER CLUBS

- 15.1. All official communications from Member Clubs to the Union including all applications, nominations, proposals, notices and Certified returns, should be signed by the Golf Captain of the Member Club and countersigned by the Chairman or the Secretary of that Club.
- **15.2.** In the case of nominations under Article 10.2.1, each nominee should endorse the nomination to signify his consent to stand for election.

16. COURTESY OF COURSES

Courtesy of the course of all Member Clubs shall be granted to the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Golf Captain, Golf Vice-Captain and Immediate Past Captain of all other Member Clubs and to the Patron, the office-bearers and the members of the Executive Committee of the Union and the Kenya Golf Federation. Courtesy shall also be extended to the reigning Kenya Amateur Open and Match play Champions and Past Chairmen of the Union and the Kenya Golf Federation.

17. SUBSCRIPTION TO ANTI-DOPING POLICIES AND RULES

The Kenya Golf Union subscribes to the anti-doping policies and rules as provided by the World Anti-Doping Code and the rules of the National Anti-Doping Organization.

18. BYE-LAWS

The Governing Council in General Meeting shall have power to make, approve, alter or repeal all such Bye-Laws as it may deem necessary for the proper regulations of the affairs of the Union.

19. ALTERATION OF THE CONSTITUTION

- 19.1. Alteration of the Constitution shall only be made by resolution of a General Meeting of the Governing Council adopted by a two-thirds majority of persons present and entitled to vote.
- **19.2.** No such resolution shall be passed unless notice thereof has been given in accordance with Article 10.2.

20. WINDING UP

- 20.1. The Union may be wound up and the property and assets of the Union may be disposed of by resolution of a General Meeting of the Governing Council adopted by a three-fourths majority of persons present and entitled to vote.
- **20.2.** No such resolution shall be passed unless notice thereof has been given in accordance with Article 10.2, save that the period of notice for any such resolution shall be not less than three months.

20.3. The Kenya Golf Federation and the Registrar of Sports must be notified in not less than three months of such resolution.

21. ARBITRATION

If any party wishes to challenge a final decision of such disciplinary appeal committee or any other dispute with the Kenya Golf Union then it shall be referred for arbitration to an arbitrator to be appointed by the Kenya Golf Federation.

BYE-LAWS

See separate booklet

APPENDIX 1

THE KENYA GOLF UNION 2014 MEMBER CLUBS

NAME OF CLUB CONTACT ADDRESS E-MAIL
2 Gilgil Golf Club P.O. Box 13, Gilgil, 20116 brendon@africaonline.co.ke 3 Golf Park P.O. Box 40373 Nairobi, 00100 zmwamto@hotmail.com 4 Great Rift Valley Golf Club P.O. Box 227 Naivasha, 20117 graemehem@kenyaweb.com 5 Karen Country Club P.O. Box 24816, Karen, 00502 golf@karen.or.ke 6 Kakamega Golf Club P.O. Box 58, Kakamega, 50100 kakamegasportsclub@gmail.com 7 Kericho Club P.O. Box 82, Kericho, 20200 kerichoclub@yahoo.com 8 Kiambu Club P.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900 kiambugolf@gmail 9 Kisii Sports Club P.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200 aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke 10 Kitale Club P.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200 kitaleclub@rocketmail.com 11 Kenya Airforce Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 kafgolf@elsiurelodgeresort.com 12 Leisure Golf Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 golf@leisurelodgeresort.com 13 Limuru Country Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 mksgolf@yahoo.com 15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 mnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 golf@amagadisoda.co.ke 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuritithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box Makuyu, 1020 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
3Golf ParkP.O. Box 40373 Nairobi, 00100zmwamto@hotmail.com4Great Rift Valley Golf ClubP.O. Box 227 Naivasha, 20117graemehern@kenyaweb.com5Karen Country ClubP.O. Box 24816, Karen, 00502golf@karen.or.ke6Kakamega Golf ClubP.O. Box 58, Kakamega, 50100kakamegasportsclub@gmail.com7Kericho ClubP.O. Box 82, Kericho, 20200kerichoclub@yahoo.com8Kiambu ClubP.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900kiambugolf@gmail9Kisii Sports ClubP.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke10Kitale ClubP.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200kitaleclub@rocketmail.com11Kenya Airforce Golf ClubP.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100kafgolf@yahoo.com12Leisure Golf ClubP.O. Box 84385, Mombasa 80100golf@leisurelodgeresort.com13Limuru Country ClubP.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217lcc@iconnect.co.ke14Machakos ClubP.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100mksgolf@yahoo.com15Magadi ClubP.O. Box Magadi, 205mnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com21Naivasha S
5 Karen Country Club P.O. Box 24816, Karen, 00502 golf@karen.or.ke 6 Kakamega Golf Club P.O. Box 58, Kakamega, 50100 kakamegasportsclub@gmail.com 7 Kericho Club P.O. Box 82, Kericho, 20200 kerichoclub@yahoo.com 8 Kiambu Club P.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900 kiambugolf@gmail 9 Kisii Sports Club P.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200 aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke 10 Kitale Club P.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200 kitaleclub@rocketmail.com 11 Kenya Airforce Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 kafgolf@yahoo.com 12 Leisure Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 kafgolf@yahoo.com 13 Limuru Country Club P.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217 lcc@iconnect.co.ke 14 Machakos Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 mksgolf@yahoo.com 15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
6 Kakamega Golf Club P.O. Box 58, Kakamega, 50100 kakamegasportsclub@gmail.com 7 Kericho Club P.O. Box 82, Kericho, 20200 kerichoclub@yahoo.com 8 Kiambu Club P.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900 kiambugolf@gmail 9 Kisii Sports Club P.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200 aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke 10 Kitale Club P.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200 kitaleclub@rocketmail.com 11 Kenya Airforce Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 kafgolf@yahoo.com 12 Leisure Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 golf@leisurelodgeresort.com 13 Limuru Country Club P.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217 lcc@iconnect.co.ke 14 Machakos Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 mksgolf@yahoo.com 15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
7 Kericho Club P.O. Box 82, Kericho, 20200 kerichoclub@yahoo.com 8 Kiambu Club P.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900 kiambugolf@gmail 9 Kisii Sports Club P.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200 aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke 10 Kitale Club P.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200 kitaleclub@rocketmail.com 11 Kenya Airforce Golf Club P.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100 kafgolf@yahoo.com 12 Leisure Golf Club P.O. Box 84385, Mombasa 80100 golf@leisurelodgeresort.com 13 Limuru Country Club P.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217 lcc@iconnect.co.ke 14 Machakos Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 mksgolf@yahoo.com 15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
8Kiambu ClubP.O. Box 139, Kiambu, 900kiambugolf@gmail9Kisii Sports ClubP.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke10Kitale ClubP.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200kitaleclub@rocketmail.com11Kenya Airforce Golf ClubP.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100kafgolf@yahoo.com12Leisure Golf ClubP.O. Box 84385, Mombasa 80100golf@leisurelodgeresort.com13Limuru Country ClubP.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217lcc@iconnect.co.ke14Machakos ClubP.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100mksgolf@yahoo.com15Magadi ClubP.O. Box Magadi, 205nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com21Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 552, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
9Kisii Sports ClubP.O. Box 103, Kisii, 40200aonsomu@kisiibottlers.co.ke10Kitale ClubP.O. Box 30 Kitale, 30200kitaleclub@rocketmail.com11Kenya Airforce Golf ClubP.O. Box 42015 Nairobi 00100kafgolf@yahoo.com12Leisure Golf ClubP.O. Box 84385, Mombasa 80100golf@leisurelodgeresort.com13Limuru Country ClubP.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217lcc@iconnect.co.ke14Machakos ClubP.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100mksgolf@yahoo.com15Magadi ClubP.O. Box Magadi, 205nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
Ritale Club
11 Kenya Airforce Golf Club
12Leisure Golf ClubP.O. Box 84385, Mombasa 80100golf@leisurelodgeresort.com13Limuru Country ClubP.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217lcc@iconnect.co.ke14Machakos ClubP.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100mksgolf@yahoo.com15Magadi ClubP.O. Box Magadi, 205nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
13 Limuru Country Club P.O. Box 10, Limuru, 217 lcc@iconnect.co.ke 14 Machakos Club P.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100 mksgolf@yahoo.com 15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box Makuyu, 1020 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100 nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com 23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300 nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com 25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
14Machakos ClubP.O. Box 148, Machakos 90100mksgolf@yahoo.com15Magadi ClubP.O. Box Magadi, 205nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
15 Magadi Club P.O. Box Magadi, 205 nnyaga@magadisoda.co.ke 16 Malindi Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200 harry_mwimali@yahoo.com 17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box Makuyu, 1020 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100 nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com 23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300 nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com 25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
16Malindi Golf & Country ClubP.O. Box 320, Malindi, 80200harry_mwimali@yahoo.com17Mombasa Golf ClubP.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100mombasagolf@wananchi.com18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
17 Mombasa Golf Club P.O. Box 90164, Mombasa 80100 mombasagolf@wananchi.com 18 Mumias Club Private Bag, Mumias emuriithi@mumias-sugar.com 19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box Makuyu, 1020 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100 nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com 23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300 nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com 25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
18Mumias ClubPrivate Bag, Mumiasemuriithi@mumias-sugar.com19Muthaiga Golf ClubP.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
19 Muthaiga Golf Club P.O. Box 41651, Nairobi 00100 golfadmin@muthaigagolfclub.com 20 Makuyu Club P.O. Box Makuyu, 1020 21 Naivasha Sports Club P.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117 richard@echoagri.com 22 Nakuru Golf Club P.O. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100 nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com 23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300 nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com 25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
20Makuyu ClubP.O. Box Makuyu, 102021Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
21Naivasha Sports ClubP.O. Box 520, Naivasha, 20117richard@echoagri.com22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
22Nakuru Golf ClubP. Box 652 Nakuru, 20100nakurugolfclub@yahoo.com23Nanyuki Sports ClubP.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
23 Nanyuki Sports Club P.O. Box 139, Nanyuki, 10400 info@nanyukisportsclub.co.ke 24 Nyahururu Golf Club P.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300 nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com 25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
24Nyahururu Golf ClubP.O. Box 165, Nyahururu 20300nyhrrsprtsclub@yahoo.com25Nyanza ClubP.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
25 Nyanza Club P.O. Box 29, Kisumu, 40100 nyanzaclubgolf@gmail.com
26 Nyali Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 95678. Mombasa 80100 nyaligolf@wananchi.com
1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
27 Nyeri Club P.O. Box 74, Nyeri, 10100 nyericlb@yahoo.com
28 Njoro Club P.O. Box 250, Njoro, 20107 c.oosterwijk@happycowkenya.com
29 Nandi Bears Golf Club P.O. Box 20, Nandi Hills 30301 tmurunge@easternproduce.co.ke
30 Ndumberi Golf Club P.O. Box 273, Kiambu, 900
31 Railway Golf Club P.O. Box 40476, Nairobi 00100 krgc@wananchi.com
32 Royal Nairobi Golf Club P.O. Box 40221, Nairobi 00100 captain@royalnairobigc.com
33 Ruiru Club P.O. Box 18, Ruiru, 232 ruirusportsclub@yahoo.com
34 Sigona Golf Club P.O. Box 10, Kikuyu, 902 sigona@iconnect.co.ke
35 Thika Sports Club P.O. Box 257, Thika, 1000 thikasportsclub@yahoo.com
36 Vet. Lab. Sports Club P.O. Box 29105, Kabete, 602 info@vetlabsc.com
37 Windsor Golf & Country Club P.O. Box 45587, Nairobi 00100 admin@windsor.co.ke
38 Vipingo Ridge P. O. Box 98 Vipingo, 80119 robward@yahoo.co.ke

APPENDIX 2	THE KENYA GOLF UNION			
	PRESIDENTS		CHAIRMEN	
1929	J.A.C. Tanahill, Esq. O.B.E.	1973	Major E.C. Field, T.D.	
1930	J.A.C. Tanahill, Esq. O.B.E.	1974	W.M. Hopley, Esq.	
1931	Major J.D. Leonard, O.B.E.	1975	M.H. Pedlow, Esq.	
1932	C.N. Day, Esq.	1976	T. Fraser, Esq	
1933	E.K. Figgis, Esq., M.C.	1977	Col. M.J. Harbage, C.B.E., M.C.	
1934	W.N. Machenzie, Esq., M.C.	1978	C. Kahara, Esq.	
1935	Capt. A.K. Gibson, O.B.E. M.C.	1979	W.J.D. Fowler, Esq.	
1936	P. Macfarlane, Esq.	1980	Dr. P. Kamau	
1937	Capt. A.K. Gibson, O.B.E., M.C.	1981	I. D. Campbell, Esq.	
1938	L. Gilbert, Esq.	1982	Dr. C. Obura	
1939	W.J. Webb. Esq. O.B.E.	1983	S. Waruhiu, Esq.	
1940	Major J. Milligan, D.s.O., M.C.	1984	P. Rainsford, Esq.	
1941	Colonel F.S. Modera, D.S.O., M.C.	1985	I. Lugonzo, Esq.	
1942	Major R.D. England	1986	I. Talwar, Esq.	
1943	R.S. Campbell, Esq. O.B.E.	1987	G. Gatere, Esq.	
1944	H.L.G. Gurney, Esq.	1988	N. Kiuna, Esq.	
1945	J. Monro, Esq.	1989	S.W. Karanja, Esq.	
1946	H.V. Anderson, Esq.	1990	H. Maina/T. Njonjo, Esq.	
1947	R.M. Macgregor, Esq.	1991	T. Njonjo, Esq.	
1948	Sir Philip Mitchell, G.C.M.G., M.C.	1992	T.C. Noad, Esq.	
1949	D.L. Morgan, Esq. M.B.E.	1993	N. Nganga, Esq.	
1950	J.C. Mundy, Esq. C.M.G.	1994	S.K. Kamau, Esq.	
1951	L.R. Fisher, Esq.	1995	J.P. Coombes, Esq.	
1952	A.E. Keatinge, Esq.	1996	M.S. Kenth, Esq.	
1953	G. Lisle Shaw, Esq.	1997	S.A. Mwai, Esq.	
1954	G.P.G. Mackay, Esq.	1998	V. Talwar Esq.	
1955	A.J. Don Small, Esq.	1999	A. Bekah Esq.	
1956	R.W. Burt, esq.	2000	J.S. Nandra Esq.	
1957	J. Foulds, Esq.	2001	David Mogere Esq.	
1958	Sir Bruce Hutt	2002	Ben Okatch/D. Ngugi	
1959	J.A. Palfreman, Esq., O.B.E.	2003	David Ngugi Esq.	
1960	D. Duncan, Esq.	2004	Harrison Kinuthia Esq.	
1961	Colonel G. East King, D.S.O., O.B.E.	2005	George Maara Esq.	
1962	Colonel J.I. Gardner – Brown, M.C.	2006	Daljit Bhavra Esq.	
1963	W.R. Prophet, Esq.	2007	P. Obath Esq.	
1964	D.R. Thompson/J. Wallace, Esq.	2008	D. Nyakang'o Esq.	

1965	J. Wallace, Esq.	2009	S. R. Ndegwa, Esq., M. B. S.	
1966	C.A. Sullivan, Esq.	2010	Parshu Hirani, Esq.	
1967	T.F.B. Gilbert, Esq.	2011	Mwaniki Gachoka, Esq.	
1968	Dr. D.M. Bertram	2012	Alfred Kariuki, Esq.	
1969	C.W.P. harrues, Esq.	2013	Francis A. Okwara, Esq.	
1970	T.P.H. Leech, Esq.	2014	Peter N. Warui, Esq.	
1971	T.A. Watts, Esq., M.B.E.	<u>2015</u>	-Anthony M Muhoro, Esq	
1972	Dr. T.C.H. Mathews			

APPENDIX 3	KENYA AMATEUR MATCHPLAY CHAMPIONS	
Year	Venue	Winner
1928	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	A.L. Kent Lemon
1929	Eldoret Club	H.L. Gurney
1930	Muthaiga Golf Club	H.F. Eagleton
1931	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	R. Forrest
1932	Gilgil Golf Club	R.W. Hooper
1933	Muthaiga Golf Club	R.D. England
1934	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	R.W. Hooper
1935	Nakuru Golf Club	N.V. Christie
1936	Railway Golf Club	R.W. Hooper
1937	Nyeri Club	A. Holden
1938	Muthaiga Golf Club	J.E. Higginson
1939	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	J.E. Higginson
1940		
1941		
1942	WORLD WAR II	
1943	Not Played	
1944		
1945		
1946	Muthaiga Golf Club	J.E. Higginson
1947	Nakuru Golf Club	A.W. Webber
1948	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	A. J. Robertson
1949	Nakuru Golf Club	I.S. Keelan
1950	Karen Country Club	A.J. Robertson
1951	Muthaiga Golf Club	R.W. Burt
1952	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	R.W. Hooper
1953	Nakuru Golf Club	R.W. Hooper
1954	Karen Country Club	K.M. Hogan
1955	Kitale Club	T.C.H. Mathews
1956	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	S.A. Keane
1957	Muthaiga Golf Club	J. Ogilvie
1958	Nyanza Club	K.G. Finlayson
1959	Karen Country Club	D.T. Dobie
1960	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	K.G. Finlayson
1961	Nakuru Golf Club	J. Ogilvie
1962	Limuru Country Club	C.D. Sykes
1963	Muthaiga Golf Club	J. England
1964	Karen Country Club D.J. Finlayson	
1965	Kitale Club	D.J. Finlayson

1966	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	J.N. Higginson
1967	Muthaiga Golf Club	D. Farrar
1968	Karen Country Club	B. Marjan
1969	Sigona Golf Club	D. Farrar
1970	Nakuru Golf Club	J. Mucheru
1971	Limuru Country Club	J. Mucheru
1972	Karen Country Club	J. Mucheru
1973	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	D. Farrar
1974	Muthaiga Golf Club	S. Mwanyenza
1975	Karen Country Club	C. Van Der Merwe
1976	Sigona Golf Club	E. Chibwesha
1977	Limuru Country Club	J. Mucheru
1978	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	B. Okello
1979	Muthaiga Golf Club	S. Onito
1980	Karen Country Club	J. Castillo
1981	Sigona Golf Club	J. Mucheru
1982	Nyali Golf & Country Club	G. Khakali
1983	Muthaiga Golf Club	D. Wandua
1984	Karen Country Club	J. Njunge
1985	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	D. Wandua
1986	Muthaiga Golf Club	H. Rajab
1987	Nyali Golf & Country Club	D. wandua
1988	Limuru Country Club	J. Ngigi
1989	Karen Country Club	Mucheru
1990	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	E. Sogno
1991	Sigona Golf Club	K. Dhall
1992	Muthaiga Golf Club	R. Waweru
1993	Windsor Golf & Country Club	D. Wandua
1994	Limuru Country Club	R. Virdee
1995	Karen Country Club	R. Virdee
1996	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	H. Thethy
1997	Nyali Golf & Country Club	H. Thethy
1998	Muthaiga Golf Club	H. Thethy
1999	Sigona Golf Club	C. Thethy
2000	Windsor Golf & Country Club	A. Shah
2001	Limuru Country Club	J. Sandhu
2002	Karen Country Club	S. Mangat
2003	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	K. Timbe
2004	Sigona Golf Club	B. Njoroge
2005	Limuru Country Club	N. Rokoine
2006	Windsor Golf & Country Club	G. Giddie
2007	Sigona Golf Club	G. Giddie

2008	Karen Country Club	G. Giddie
2009	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	G. Giddie
2010	Windsor Golf & Country Club	Greg Snow
2011	Limuru Country Club	James M Karanja
2012	Windsor Golf & Country Club	Tony Omuli
2013	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	Nelson Simwa
2014	Muthaiga Golf Club	Boniface Koskei

APPENDIX 4	K 4 KENYA AMATEUR STROKEPLAY CHAMPIONS	
Year	Venue	Winner
1990	Limuru Country Club	J. Mucheru
1991	Muthaiga Golf Club	J. Kingʻori
1992	Karen Country Club	J. Kingʻori
1993	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	J. Mucheru
1994	Sigona Golf Club	J. Limb Jnr.
1995	Limuru Country Club	R. Virdee
1996	Muthaiga Golf Club	J. Panesar
1997	Karen Country Club	T. Fraser
1998	Nyali Golf & Country Club	R. Virdee
1999	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	Ajay Shah
2000	Thika Sports Club	Wachira Mahihu
2001	Sigona Golf Club	Wachira Mahihu
2002	Muthaiga Golf Club	E. Daniels
2003	Karen Country Club	D. Odhiambo
2004	Nyali Golf & Country Club	Kopan Timbe
2005	Windsor Golf & Country Club	B. Njoroge
2006	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	N. Rokoine
2007	Sigona Golf Club	Greg Snow
2008	Limuru Country Club	Francis Kimani
2009	Muthaiga Golf Club	Stefan Andersen
2010	Royal Nairobi Golf Club	Nadeem Alibhai
2011	Karen Country Club	Justus Madoya
2012	Thika Sports Club	David Opati
2013	Sigona Golf Club	John Karichu

APPENDIX 5	K.G.U. GOLFER OF THE YEAR TROPHY
Year	Winner
1981	J. Mucheru
1982	G. Khakali
1983	J. Mucheru
1984	J. Mucheru
1985	D. Wandua
1986	J. Mucheru
1987	D. Wandua
1988	D. wandua
1989	J. Mucheru
1990	J. Mucheru
1991	J. Kingori
1992	J. Mucheru
1993	D. Wandua
1994	D. Wandua
1995	R. Virdee
1996	R. Virdee
1997	D. Indiza
1998	Wachira Mahihu
1999	Ajay Shah
2000	Wachira Mahihu
2001	Wachira Mahihu
2002	Wachira Mahihu
2003	Kopan Timbe
2004	Kopan Timbe
2005	Brian Njoroge
2006	Nicholas Rokoine
2007	Greg Snow
2008	Francis Kimani
2009	Francis Kimani
2010	Sulvian Muthigia
2011	J.W. Karanja
2012	David Opati
2013	John Karichu

NOTES: